
Meeting agendas and written materials supporting agenda items, if produced, can be received by the public for free in advance of the meeting 
by any of the following options: 

 A paper copy viewed at the District office, 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 during business hours or mailed pursuant 
to a written request and payment of associated mailing fees 

 An electronic copy received by email. Note - a form requesting email delivery of agendas and/or meeting materials must be 
completed a minimum of one week in advance of the meeting 

 Viewed on the Board page of the District’s website 

 A limited number of copies of agenda materials will also be available at the meeting 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the LDPCSD 
Board Secretary at (209) 852-2251 Ext. 2. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility 

 

 
  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District         DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd. La Grange, CA 95329                                                Dan Hankemeier, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                      Emery Ross, Vice President  
                        Dan Johnson 
            Russell Warren 
                  Mary Smith 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

June 19, 2023 at 1:00 p.m. 
 

 Mission Statement: The Lake Don Pedro CSD is dedicated to providing our customers with ample  
quantities of high quality water meeting all standards, in a fiscally responsible manner. 

 

Amended Agenda 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Any person may address the Board at this time on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board that is NOT ON THE AGENDA A 
maximum of three minutes is allowed each person and a maximum of 20 minutes per topic. Any person wishing to address the 
Board on an item ON THE AGENDA will be given the opportunity at that time. Speakers are encouraged to consult District 
Management or Directors prior to agenda preparation regarding any District matters, as no action will be taken on non-agenda 
issues. 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING: A Notice of Public Hearing has been published and hearing to be 
 held for the purpose of receiving public input and comment as required for the 
 following revenue collection and budget related items. At the conclusion of the public 
 Hearing, the Board will consider adoption of Resolution approving the various actions. 
 

 a. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Placement of the Availability Billing and                          
 Delinquent Account balances on the Mariposa and Tuolumne County 2023-2024 Tax               
 Rolls for collection 

 
    4. CLOSED SESSION: 
    
 a. CLOSED SESSION 
    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
              GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(b)(1) 
              Report from Subcommittee 
              Title:  General Manager 
 
         5. PRESENTATION ONLY:  
              a. Presiding Officer’s Report  
              b. General Manager’s Report: 
                   Grant / Study Updates 
         Current District Projects 
                   Operations Updates 

1



Meeting agendas and written materials supporting agenda items, if produced, can be received by the public for free in advance of the meeting 
by any of the following options: 

 A paper copy viewed at the District office, 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329 during business hours or mailed pursuant 
to a written request and payment of associated mailing fees 

 An electronic copy received by email. Note - a form requesting email delivery of agendas and/or meeting materials must be 
completed a minimum of one week in advance of the meeting 

 Viewed on the Board page of the District’s website 

 A limited number of copies of agenda materials will also be available at the meeting 
Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance: If you require special assistance to participate in Board Meetings, please contact the LDPCSD 
Board Secretary at (209) 852-2251 Ext. 2. Advance notification will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to insure 
accessibility 

 

                    Administrative Updates 
 
 
 
          6. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered   
   separately as determined appropriate by the President  
 

  a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report for the period ending May 31, 2023 including        
  summary of claims paid  
               b. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of May15, 2023  

 
7. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 
    a. Discussion / Information only regarding the LDPCSD Leak Crew Report 
 b. Adoption of a Resolution Approving the LDPCSD 2023-24 Preliminary Budget 
 c. Discussion / Approval of the LDPCSD Proposed Organizational Chart 
 d. Discussion /Approval of a Resolution approving 2023 -2024 COLA (Cost of Living    
     Adjustment) 
 e. Discussion / Information only regarding the LDPCSD Grant Project Update Report 
 f.  Discussion / Information only regarding the Filter Estimates Report 
 g. Discussion / Information only regarding the Accounts Receivable Report 
 h. Discussion / Information only regarding the LDPCSD Financial Update Report   
 i.  Discussion / Approval regarding the American Pavement Systems Stockpile Agreement 
    j.  Discussion / Approval of a Resolution to updated Bank Signature Cards removing previous      
  Director Donelda Sperry and adding Director Mary Smith 

        
 8. ADJOURNMENT: 

2



 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

From:  Syndie Marchesiello  

Date: May 17, 2023 

Subject: Availability Billing / Delinquent Accounts 

Purpose:                     For the Board of Directors to approve placing the amounts on the tax 

 rolls for collections.         

                    

 

At the beginning of the fiscal year in July the availability lots are billed. The availability fee and 
delinquent charges are placed on the tax rolls for collection.  
 
Per Government Code 61115(b), a notice was posted June 6th, 8th, & 14th for a Public Hearing 
held June 19, 2023 at the District office. In addition, a lien may be filed on the delinquent 
properties.  
 
 
Recommendation – The Board of Directors make a motion that states: 
The Board approve resolution 2023-xxxx approving the availability, delinquent charges and 
lien / release fees, to be sent to Mariposa and Tuolumne Counties to be placed on the 2023 / 
2024 tax rolls for collection with the exception of any balances that have been paid prior to 
placing them on the tax rolls. In addition, to have liens placed on the appropriate properties 
so as to meet the requirements of the counties and aid in collection of those fees.   
 
 
 
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

3



Amount Applied to Mariposa and Tuolumne Co. 

2023‐2024 Tax Rolls 

 

Mariposa County Availability (Standby) Fee 

$115,188.00 

Tuolumne County Availability (Standby) Fee 

$65,043.00 

Delinquents without Processing Fees 

$44,059.94 

Total $224,290.94 

   

                       APN         Past Due Amount 

  001‐020‐014    682.58 

  001‐260‐035     1,196.26 

  019‐010‐016    1,513.89 

          019‐010‐025        377.45  

  019‐040‐019           1,065.72 

  019‐050‐010               1,007.45 

  019‐060‐011      561.32   

  019‐060‐024                    1,112.58 

  019‐070‐005                693.23 

  019‐090‐021                992.61 

  019‐090‐036                615.32 

  019‐120‐018                    760.62 

  019‐130‐015                 383.40 

  019‐140‐001                    1,491.83   

   019‐140‐006                   1,116.13 

4



  019‐150‐015                    1,327.63 

  020‐020‐008                    615.31 

  020‐030‐005                    615.31 

  020‐040‐023                504.59 

  020‐070‐030                 749.50 

  020‐070‐038                  624.22   

      020‐230‐001                   2,319.19 

      020‐230‐013                    613.62 

     020‐290‐008                    312.46 

     021‐030‐024                     950.75 

     021‐090‐010                    618.14 

    021‐110‐010                    915.34 

     021‐120‐013                    1,152.87 

    021‐140‐005                     355.42 

    021‐150‐006               615.31 

    021‐160‐003                   1,209.42 

     021‐170‐016                    726.32 

    021‐180‐009                    1,581.67 

      021‐210‐032                    758.14 

      021‐230‐019                    727.28 

    021‐260‐015                    985.26 

    021‐380‐044                    442.95   

    075‐020‐004  745.58 

    075‐040‐021  298.19 

    075‐070‐008    482.11 

5



    075‐100‐025    657.23 

    075‐140‐006    371.95 

    075‐160‐012    733.71 

    075‐170‐018    596.71 

    075‐170‐029    573.82 

    075‐190‐014    333.23 

    075‐190‐019    590.13 

    075‐190‐023    690.37 

    075‐210‐010    340.65 

    075‐210‐011    669.40 

    076‐040‐018    268.83 

    076‐040‐034    785.03 

    076‐150‐013    573.82 

    076‐210‐019    431.44 

    076‐220‐009    506.90 

    076‐240‐022    728.89 

    076‐240‐027    296.28 

    075‐240‐006  1,094.58 

6



LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2023-XXX 

Approving 2023-2024 Availability and Delinquent Charges applied to the tax rolls for collection 

WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District collects (Water) Availability Charges from vacant 
parcels within its boundaries, as well as collecting delinquent monthly service charges from active 
water customers as authorized in law; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023-2024 Availability Fees and Delinquent Charges were submitted to the Board, and requested 
certification of the proposed charges to be place on the tax rolls for collection in addition to lien and 
lien release fees, and 

WHEREAS, the 2023-2024 Availability and Delinquent Charges were duly presented to the public at the Special 
Board Meeting of June 19, 2023 and opportunity for public input provided; and 

WHEREAS, the District must certify the 2023-2024 Availability and Delinquent Charges and submit them as 
approved to the County of Tuolumne and County of Mariposa for collection on the tax rolls by 
August 1st and August 10th  of each year. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Availability and Delinquent Charges as submitted are hereby 
certified and approved for submission to the respective counties for collection on the tax rolls. 

This resolution was passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services 
District, this 19th day of June 2023 by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES: (0)  

NAYS:        (0) 

ABSENT: (0)  

ABSTAIN:       (0) 
 

 
 

ATTEST: 
          Dan Hankemeier, President of the Board

 
 
 
 

 

Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

I, Syndie Marchesiello, as the duly appointed Secretary of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted on the 19th day of June 2023 at the Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors. 

7



 

1 | P a g e  
 

  

 
      
 

June 19th, 2023 
 
With the fiscal year ending, District staff schedules are particularly demanding. Administrative staff have 
worked tirelessly completing multiple end of year reports, Request for Proposal’s, in addition to 
Preliminary Budget FY 2023-2024.  Operations staff have been diligent in preparing for high water 
demand months to come.  
 
The Request for Proposal were distributed to the four selected contracting firms, for our much-anticipated 
Intake Upgrade Project. We anticipate this vital system upgrade beginning September/October of 2023.    
 
 
 
 
In addition to finding me in my office, I can reached at the following: 

 District phone – (209) 852-2331 
 E-mail - Patrick@ldpcsd.org 

	
 
 
 
Grant/Study Updates 
 
DWR BARRETT COVE RAW WATER INTAKE PROJECT- PLEASE SEE STAFF REPORT 
 
USDA LOAN / RAW WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT‐ PLEASE SEE STAFF REPORT 
 
DWSRF- PLEASE SEE STAFF REPORT 
 
 
 
 
Current District Projects 
 

 EMERGENCY LEAK CREW – We have performed two water main repairs & four service 
leaks since our last meeting.  
 

  RAW WATER MAIN LEAK- COMPLETE  
 

 WATER TREATMENT FILTERS – PLEASE SEE STAFF REPORT 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

8



 

 2

 
 WEED ABATEMENT – Staff have spent a great deal of time cutting weeds at all District sites, 

in preparation for our summer months.  
 

 2023 LDPCSD MAINTENANCE PLAN – District operations staff have been diligent in 
completing scheduled service work orders on District assets. I have been busy collecting 
photographs of all District sites, in order to compile a comprehensive easy to follow maintenance 
plan. I will provide a formal update in July Board meeting.   
 

 ENEBRO STORAGE TANK VENT- During one of our late winter storms, high winds blew 
the vent off our Enebro water storage facility. Staff have ordered the appropriate hardware to 
properly fix.  
 

 BARGE STORAGE – District Operations Lead met with Don Pedro Custom Marine and 
TLMC.  We met to discuss the best way to winterize/store the outboard for the barge. It was the 
consensus of subject matter experts to add fuel additive/stabilizer to the gas and run the motor for 
15-20 minutes. Once complete, we will need to cover the motor either with a tarp or purchase the 
cover made for that motor and secure it to the barge with a locked chain or cable. Custom Marine 
advised us to keep battery in place since it is connected and maintained with solar. Prior to the 
next usage of the barge, we will need to have the outboard serviced and the impeller replaced 
otherwise it could result in engine damage and or permanent failure.  

 
 RAW WATER TANK LEVEL TRANSDUCER – We recently identified our raw water tank 

dumping pumped water to waste. We have contacted our controls contractor and ordered a new 
level transducer to remedy this issue.   
 

 RAW WATER TANK CLEANING & INSPECTION – COMPLETE 
 

 DISTRICT SITE METER REPLACMENT PROJECT – Staff have identified all non-
operable flow meters at tank sites. I am working with Sparling Meter representative to order the 
appropriate replacements for our Alamo, Arboloda, and Coronado sites. Once these upgrades are 
completed we will then transition to additional sites.  
 

 ARBOLODA STATION – We have ordered a new pump & motor to complete station upgrade. 
District staff will perform the install.    
 

 TREATMENT PLANT INSTRUMENTATION – Operations staff performed all servicing, 
cleaning, and re-calibration of treatment plant instrumentation.  
  

 SEDIMENTATION BASIN – Operations staff have begun emptying & cleaning sedimentation 
basin weekly to ensure water quality meets standards. This maintenance item requires 2 to 3 
operators for approximately half a day to perform duties.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 

 3

Operations 
 

 SERVICE ORDERS  & USA’S – This past month we have completed 56 service order requests 
& 66 USA Tickets included: 

 
- 38 meter reads, for properties being transferred/sold or ZERO CONSUMPTION 
- 7 possible leaks 
- 2 faulty meters replaced    

 
 MONTHLY METER READS - Staff performed 1526 monthly meter reads for billing. We read 

approximately 350 of these meters manually.    
 

 USA NORTH 811 – Underground Service Alert is a non-profit organization that links the 
excavation community and the owners of the underground lines. LDPCSD receives USA Ticket 
requests daily to locate and mark our existing water lines for a planned excavation. PG&E and 
their subcontractors have been extremely active in our community.  

 
 WATER SAMPLES - Working with our water lab under the guidance of the SWRCB, District 

staff grab water samples on the 1st or 3rd Tuesday of each month.  
 

 WATER STORAGE SITE INSPECTIONS – Field staff are in the process of visiting each 
water storage facility, and hydro-pneumatic station in order to perform preventive maintenance 
on pumps, visually inspect all components and cleanup area.  
 

 WATER QUALITY – With the continued rainstorms, runoff has made treating water difficult. 
Treatment operators have been diligent, performing jar tests, and adjusting chemical dosages to 
maximize water quality while also minimizing costs associated.   

 
 
 
 
Administrative 
 

 RAW WATER TANK CLEANING & INSPECTION – COMPLETE   
 

 ON- CALL CALENDAR- COMPLETE    
 

 DISTRICT SYSTEM MAPS – Staff have compiled 11 x 17” District system maps. These maps 
will be placed in each District vehicle so that all operations staff can access system information 
while working in the field.   
 

 2022-2023 ELECTRONIC ANNUAL REPORT – We recently completed the 2022-2023 eAR. 
This extensive all-encompassing District annual report requires the attention of the administrative 
and operations team to compile appropriate information.  
 

 CSDA MID-STATE CHAPTER MEETING – We met on 6/1/23 for our quarterly meeting of 
the Board of Directors.   
 

 LDP BAPTIST CHURCH – COMPLETE  
 

10



 

 4

 TANK SITE METER UPGRADES – I am actively working with Sparling meter representative 
to find the appropriate meters to replace existing non-operable.  
 

 OPERATIONS STAFF JOB DESCRIPTIONS – I have requested the assistance of District 
legal counsel to assist in this matter. This will be on the July Agenda.   

 
 DWR INTAKE UPGRADE RFP’S – Working with contracted engineers we distributed these 

request for proposals 6/2/2023.  
 

 CALPERS 457 PLAN – I met with local CalPERS representatives in regards to the retirement 
plan option offered to District staff. They would like to schedule a site visit to discuss the benefits 
with District staff.  
 

 LDP GOLF COURSE INVESTMENT GROUP – I have provided the investment group 
requested information and am awaiting a response.  
 

 LAKE DON PEDRO OWNERS ASSOCIATION – I periodically check in with owners 
association to ensure there are no issues with properties within our area. LDPOA has no issues or 
concerns at this time.   

 
 SWRCB DROUGHT TECHNICAL MONITORING ORDER – This in depth monthly report 

tracks the usage of all District water sources.  
 

 MAY DAILY TASK BREAKDOWN – PLEASE SEE ATTACHMENT   
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
________________________ 
Patrick McGowan, General Manager 

11



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 
From: Patrick McGowan  
Date: June19th, 2023 
Subject: Reservoir Level Update               
     

Description – Reservoir Level  
 
May 6th, 2023                 June 6th, 2023 
802.93’ Above Sea Level                                          834.98’ Above Sea Level 
640,666 Acre Feet Water Storage                             815,404 Acre Feet Water Storage 
     
 
174,738 Acre Feet INCREASE in Storage 
57 Billion Gallons of Water increase 
32.05’ increase in Reservoir Level 
Seasonal Rainfall Total = 33.76” 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

12



13



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: Monthly Water Loss Report   

 
 
Date: 4/26/2023 – 5/30/2023 
 
 
Water Sold:    17,602 (ccf) = 40.40 Acre Feet 
 
Flows into System:    23,609 (ccf) = 54.19 Acre Feet 
 
Change in Storage:   313.83 (ccf) = .72 Acre Feet 
 
Flows Out of Zone:     20,750 (ccf) = 47.63 Acre Feet 
 
Water Used at Plant:     4,016 (ccf) = 9.22 Acre Feet 
 
 
 
Pumped From Lake:      30,498 (ccf) = 70 Acre Feet 
 
Pumped From Wells:      1,701 (ccf) = 3.91 Acre Feet  
 
Total Water Pumped:     32,199 (ccf) = 73.91 Acre Feet 
 
 
While performing remote reads on 5/30/2023, Operations Staff identified the level transducer in 
our raw water tank was not working properly. The raw water tank was calling Intake for water 
when tank was already full. This system failure resulted in approximately 20 acre feet of water 
being pumped and dumped directly to waste.   

             

     

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



 

  Lake Don Pedro Community Services District         DIRECTORS 
9751 Merced Falls Rd. La Grange, CA 95329                                                Dan Hankemeier, President 
(209) 852-2331 – www.ldpcsd.org                      Emery Ross, Vice President  
                        Dan Johnson 
            Russell Warren 
                      Mary Smith (correction) 

Regular Meeting Minutes of the Board of Directors 
9751 Merced Falls Road 

May 15, 2023 at 1:00 p.m. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER: Presiding Officer: Establish Quorum, Pledge of Allegiance: 

The Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District held a regular  
meeting at 9751 Merced Falls Rd., La Grange, CA 95329  
President Hankemeier called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.  
Directors present: Hankemeier, Ross, Johnson, and Smith, Warren 
Also present: GM P. McGowan   
Also present: Board Secretary: S. Marchesiello    
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
            The Board of Directors received no public comments 
 
 

         3. PRESENTATION ONLY:  
              a. Presiding Officer’s Report  
     None at this time 
 
              b. General Manager’s Report: 
                   Grant / Study Updates 
         Current District Projects 
                   Operations Updates 
                    Administrative Updates 
         Presented by GM P. McGowan 
 
          4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: The following items may all be approved in one motion or considered   
   separately as determined appropriate by the President  
 

  a. Read and file the Treasurer’s Report for the period ending April 30, 2023 including        
  summary of claims paid  
               b. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of April 17, 2023 and Personnel Committee 
  Meeting April 24, 2023 
 
     Motion: To approve the consent calendar 
                   Votes: Carried 5-0  
                   First: Ross  Second: Warren 
                 Ayes: Johnson, Warren, Ross, Smith, and Hankemeier 
      Absent: 
 

5. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS: 
 
 a. Discussion / Information only regarding the On-Call Standby Calendar 

           No action taken- Information only 
 
 
 

23



 

    b. Discussion / Approval regarding Changes to the Stand Duty (on- Call) Policy #2171 
 

           Motion: To approve a two (2) week rotation on the On-Call Policy #2171 to replace one   
       (1) week rotation 
                   Votes: Carried 5-0  
                   First: Ross  Second: Warren 
                   Ayes: Johnson, Warren, Ross, Smith, and Hankemeier 
        Absent: 
 
      Motion: To approve the increase in compensation pay of (5) five hours weekly for on-   
      call pay to begin July 1st 2023 and (6) six hours beginning the following year July 1st   
      2024 
                 Votes: Carried 3-2  
                 First: Ross  Second: Warren 
                 Ayes: Johnson, Warren, Ross, Smith, and Hankemeier 
      Nays: Johnson, Hankemeier 
 
 

          c. Discussion / Information only regarding USDA (United States Department of Agriculture) Raw 
 Water Main Replacement Update 

         No action taken- Information only 
 
 

    d. Discussion / Information only regarding the LDP Baptist Church Meter Update 
           No action taken- Information only 

 
    e. Discussion / Information only regarding LDPCSD Water Treatment Filters  

           No action taken- Information only 
 

    f. Discussion / Information only regarding the Barge Storage 
       Consensus of the Board of Directors to direct GM McGowan to pull the battery on the  
       barge, drain the fuel and GM McGowan to find a way to secure the motor 

 
   g. Discussion / Approval of Resolution 2023-xxx Commending Donelda (Nellie) Sperry for her   
       Years of Service to LDPCSD 
 

            Motion: To approve the resolution 2023-xxx commending Donelda (Nellie) Sperry for 
        her years of service to LDPCSD 
             Votes: Carried 5-0  
             First: Ross  Second: Warren 
             Ayes: Ross, Warren, Johnson, Smith, and Hankemeier 

       Absent: 
    
 Close Open Session: 2:40 p.m. 
 Reconvene: 4:08 p.m. 
 

 6. CLOSED SESSION: 
    

  a. CLOSED SESSION 
      PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
           GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957(b)(1) 
           Report from Subcommittee 
           Title:  General Manager 
 
     REPORT OUT: Nothing to report 

24



 

 
 
 
      7. ADJOURNMENT: 4:08 p.m. 
 
  Respectfully submitted by, 
 
         S. Marchesiello 
         Board Secretary 

25



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject:  LDPCSD LEAK/CONSTRUCTION CREW  

 

Description – 

LDPCSD’S emergency leak/construction crew has done a tremendous job this past year keeping our 
distribution system pumping. Over this past fiscal year our operations team was extremely short handed. 
Listed below are the system projects we were able to complete. I placed a numerical value to each type of 
system upgrade performed. The values placed for each specific job come from past invoices LDPCSD has 
paid to private contractors in 2016-2019 for work performed.   
 
 
33 - 1” Water Service replacement/repairs                  157,000 
  6 - 2”- 8” Water Main Repairs                                      39,000 
  4 – Water Main Cut In                                                   40,000 
  3 – 30” Raw Water Main Repairs                                 22,500 
  3 – Fire Hydrants Replaced                                           30,000 
  3 – 6” Gate Valves Replaced                                          30,000 
  2 – Granite Springs 10” 90% Blowout                          55,000 
  1 – 10” Plant Meter Replacement                                    4,500 
46 – Identified and replaced water meters                     14,500 

 

                                                                                        $392,500 
 
  
LDPCSD’S ability to complete these emergency system repairs in house is vital to our continued success as 
a District. Our water system is over fifty years of age, and an experienced team able to fix whatever comes 
our way is crucial. I believe many of the financial restrictions we are facing today derived from a neglected 
system for many years. It is my opinion that investing in our District’s system maintenance independence is 
critical to our future success.  

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

26



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: FY 2023-2024 Preliminary Budget 

 

Description –  

I have reviewed FY 2022-2023 Budget thoroughly and made appropriate adjustments for our 
upcoming FY 2023-2024 Preliminary Budget. Long-term Budget projections during the extreme 
inflation our country is experiencing, is difficult.  

 

A sizable increase in revenue is projected in lease revenue highlighted in GL# 01-0-4040-100, 
from our recent Verizon wireless Cell Tower negotiations. In addition the District is forecasting an 
increase in revenue from the recent increases in monthly service & commodity charges GL# 01-0-
4010-403.  

 

The 2023-2024 Preliminary Budget displays expense increases under GL# 01-1-5010-100, with 
the proposed addition of a fourth full-time operations staff member. The added operations staff 
member will assist in maintaining our aging distribution system, and will represent an overall cost 
savings to LDPCSD. Increases were made to add much needed Capital Improvement Projects. GL 
# 01-0-1090-321 shows a sizable increase from previous years. This proposed increase has been 
set aside in order to potentially fund the Water Filter Media Replacement Project. Reserves have 
also been designated to fund the TBD # Central Station Upgrades. The District’s focus continues 
to be our DWR Intake Upgrade Project and keeping capital reserves available to facilitate this 
project.  
 

     
. 

  
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

27



RESOLUTION 2023-xx 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OFTHE 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
ADOPTION OF FY 2023-2024 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a local government agency 
formed and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seq. of the California Government Code; and 
 

     WHEREAS, I have reviewed FY 2022-2023 Budget thoroughly and made the appropriate adjustments for our upcoming FY 
2023-2024 Preliminary Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, long-term Budget projections during the extreme inflation our country is experiencing is difficult. I have contacted 
vendors to inquire about potential cost savings and have been notified of annual increases; and 

 

WHEREAS, increases have been proposed in adding an additional full-time operations staff member. The additional 
operations staff member will assist maintaining our aging distribution system, and represent an overall cost savings to 
LDPCSD; and  

 

  WHEREAS, modest adjustments were made from last year to current budget proposed. Small Capital Improvement Projects 
have been proposed. Two critical larger projects have also been proposed: 

Water Treatment Filter media replacement 

Central Station Upgrades 

 

 WHEREAS, our main focus continues to be our DWR Intake Upgrade Project and keeping capital reserves available to 
facilitate this project 

  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSOFTHELAKE DON PEDRO 
COMMUNITYSERVICES DISTRICT SHALL ADOPT FY 2023-2024 PRELIMINARY BUDGET.     

 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 

Services District on June 19th, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: ( )  
NOES:     ( ) 
ABSENT:  ( )  
ABSTAIN:   ( ) 

 
        ____________________________ 

 

      Dan Hankemeier, President, Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 
CERTIFICATE OF 
SECRETARY (STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA) (COUNTY OF 

MARIPOSA) 
 28



I, Syndie Marchesiello, the duly appointed and Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don 
Pedro Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly passed 
and adopted at a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 
Services District duly called and held at the District office at 9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange, CA 
95239, on June 19th, 2023. 

29



30



31



32



33



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: Cost of Living Adjustment Increase                

     

Description – Our District considers revisions to the salaries paid to employees on an annual basis 
in conjunction with the development and approval of its annual budget. The District has 
established a goal to maintain employee salary and benefits provided, as well as an employment 
environment conducive to the attraction and retention of high quality, efficient, skilled and highly 
productive employees. Recent Federal Government adjustments have been made and the annual 
inflation rate for 2023 has been revised to 4.93%. One means used by the District to ensure that 
employee wages remain competitive in the local government and water supply industry and at the 
same time avoid large impacts to the District budget is to adjust the scale of hourly wages paid to 
employees by the appropriate Consumer Price Index (CPI) annually, to reflect the relative change 
in the cost of living from year to year. LDPCSD has utilized the March Consumer Price Index for 
Bay Area Clerical Workers to calculate the changes necessary to the Salary Chart for many years. 
This increase is determined to be 5.1% for 2022/2023 fiscal year.   

 
 

 

     
. 
 

 
 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

34



RESOLUTION 2023-xx 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OFTHE 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
APPROVAL OF COLA (COST OF LIVING) FOR 

 2023/24 FISCALYEAR 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District (herein referred to as District) is a local government agency 
formed and operating in accordance with Section §61000 et seq. of the California Government Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the District considers revisions to the salaries paid to employees on an annual basis in conjunction with the 

development and approval of its annual budget; and 
 

     WHEREAS, the District has established a goal to maintain employee salary and benefits provided, as well as an employment 
environment conducive to the attraction and retention of high quality, efficient, skilled and highly productive employees; and 

 

  WHEREAS, one means used by the District to ensure that employee wages remain competitive in the local government and 

water supply industry and at the same time avoid large impacts to the District budget is to adjust the scale of hourly wages 

paid to employees by the appropriate Consumer Price Index (CPI) annually, to reflect the relative change in the cost of living 

from year to year; and 

  WHEREAS, the Consumer Price Index for Bay Area Clerical Workers is used to calculate the changes necessary to the 

Salary Chart; which is determined to be 5.1% for 2022/2023 fiscal year. 
  
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSOFTHELAKE DON PEDRO 
COMMUNITYSERVICES DISTRICT SHALL ADOPT 5.1% COST OF LIVING INCREASE ADJUSTMENTS TO 
ALL POSITIONS AND ALL STEPS.    

 

WHEREFORE, this Resolution is passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 

Services District on June 19th, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: ( )  
NOES:     ( ) 
ABSENT:  ( )  
ABSTAIN:   ( ) 

 
        ____________________________ 

 

      Dan Hankemeier, President, Board of Directors 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary 
CERTIFICATE OF 
SECRETARY (STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA) (COUNTY OF 

MARIPOSA) 
 

I, Syndie Marchesiello, the duly appointed and Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don 
Pedro Community Services District, do hereby declare that the foregoing Resolution was duly passed 
and adopted at a Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Lake Don Pedro Community 
Services District duly called and held at the District office at 9751 Merced Falls Road, La Grange, CA 
95239, on June 19th, 2023. 

35



36



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: GRANT PROJECT UPDATES 

 

Description – 

 
DWSRF Treatment Plant Modernization Planning Project  
Project Manager Jessica Krebs DWR 
 
LDPCSD initially applied for funding through the DWSRF in 2015. The original scope of work 
for this grant application consisted of: A new deep water intake at Barrett Cove, test Well holes, 
and a new Treatment Plant. The scope of work has been recently modified and the deep water 
intake at Barrett Cove has been removed due to another funding source established. This planning 
project will focus exclusively on the vital need for an upgraded Treatment Plant & potential 
ground water well procurements. We are awaiting reimbursement in the amount of $36,000 for 
costs incurred thus far in planning.   
 
 
 
DWR Intake Upgrade Small Community Drought Relief Program  
Project Manager Josh Bannister DWR 

 
“Due to this winter’s heavy snowfall and continued atmospheric river rain events, we at 
DWR are on high alert for this next incoming storm which could trigger rapid snowmelt 
and heavy flooding. I know this project was anticipating construction during a low winter 
WSE at Lake McClure. With the abrupt change in precipitation this year, please continue 
to document that situation as it relates to cost or schedule changes so we can best support 
funding its completion. Especially once it’s bid for construction. 
 
Thanks for your continued patience,” 

 
Our Barrett Cove Intake Upgrade received approval of the funding agreement on 12/2/2021 
with the State for $3,600,000. All permitting, application fee’s, planning, and environmental 
reviews have been performed. The District is awaiting three submitted reimbursements, which are 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

37



 

currently being reviewed by grant project manager. On 5/31/2023 Project Manager Mr. Bannister 
ensured our District that all submitted claims will be reviewed, processed and awaiting State 
controller’s signature by 7/1/2023. The District reviewed and selected four qualified contractors to 
participate in the design build of our Intake Upgrade. The Request for Proposal’s (RFPS) were 
finalized and then reviewed by District legal counsel. The RFP’S were sent out the evening of 
6/2/2023. The individual proposals are due 7/6/2023 at 3:00PM.  Interviews with perspective 
contractors are scheduled for the week of 6/26/2023, and the selection process to happen 
7/17/2023. Negotiations and then subsequent approval will take place in August, and if all goes to 
plan the contractor selection/notice to proceed is scheduled for September 2023. Once proposals 
are received, LDPCSD administration along with Black water Engineering will review and present 
our recommendations to LDPCSD Board of Directors.  LDPCSD submitted all pertinent 
documentation for costs incurred thus far. We are awaiting reimbursement in the amount of 
$99,000. 
 

 
 
USDA Raw Water Main Replacement Project 
Project Manager Sara Brookes  

 
In 2020 soon after my arrival in the District I began searching for funding to upgrade our 
antiquated Barrett Cove Intake system. I began with United States Department of agriculture 
that was offering highly competitive low interest loans. In addition to a low interest loan, pending 
project size & scope some of the funding may be granted to our District as well. In order to apply 
for this loan opportunity our District had an initial Preliminary engineering Report completed. In 
December of 2022 LDPCSD secured funding from the Department of Water Resources for our 
Barrett Cove Intake Upgrade. 
 
In May of 2022 with our USDA loan application now submitted I decided to reach out to our 
previous project manager Antonio Ybarra and see if we could transfer our need to the Districts 
aging Raw Water Main. The District submitted an application, scope of work, and cost estimate 
for new Raw Water Main on 6-12-22. It was requested that the District perform an additional 
Preliminary Engineering Report due to change in scope of work. Successful negotiations with the 
USDA, led to senior engineer Robert Nielsen performing the secondary PER. The cost associated 
with a PER ranges from $50-100k.  New Project Manager Sara Brookes has requested updated 
financial records from our District. I provided these documents on 5/19/23. There has been no 
significant expenses incurred thus far.  

38



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: Treatment Plant Filters 

 

Description – 

Our water treatment filters are not functioning ideally at this time. Heading into high demand summer 

months, this inefficiency can greatly hinder our water production. Our District has sought the 

recommendations/advice of our existing filter contractor, Engineer, as well as a second and third 

contractor’s opinion. I have been successful in obtaining estimates for a full media replacement from two 

contracting firms and am eagerly awaiting a requested third. Regardless of who is chosen to perform work, 

they media replacement will need to be completed this fiscal year. I have proposed funding 01-0-1090-321 

Filter/Tank Cleaning with $90,000 to have mitigation work performed.  

 
  

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

39



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE        

 

Description – 

Our District has been extremely active repairing and upgrading our water system. This has been blatantly 
apparent in our financial records. Listed below are expected reimbursements our District will from income 
sources other than water service, and commodities sales.  
 
23,594.97     Mariposa & Tuolumne County availability fees 
99,416.84     DWR Raw Water Intake Upgrade Reimbursable II & III 
50,967.70     Verizon Wireless Cell Tower lease negotiated 5 year upfront payment  
35,780.84     DWSRF Plant Modernization Reimbursable I 

$ 209,760.35 

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

40



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: LDPCSD FINANCIAL UPDATE  

 

Description – 

1 .On June 10th, 2020 the District Board of Directors were presented with an option for $331,000 from 
At&t, in exchange for a 99 year lease agreement at our Arboloda cell tower. At this time our Treasure’s 
Report balance was $1,066,852.  
 
2. On October 12th, 2020 the Districts one operable Intake pump failed. At this time our Treasure’s Report 
showed District reserves at $970,136. The costs associated with this emergency totaled $267,523.   
 
3. On November 8th 2021 the LDPCSD Board of Directors voted to adopt new water rate structure. As we 
are close to half way through the scheduled increase I felt it the appropriate time to review. On December 
14th, 2020 the rate design was chosen by the Board of Directors. November 12th, 2020 I recommended that 
LDPCSD chose Alternative A from attached documents.  
 
Alternative A was a 70% fixed with 30% variable cost option. In addition Alternative A has a 10% increase 
each year x 5.  Over the 5 years of the rate increase this alternative would have brought approximately 
$6,544,570 in revenue.  

 
In resolution 2020–12 the LDPCSD Board of Director’s chose Alternative A with a 70% fixed with 30% 
variable cost option. The major difference in these two choices is the 7% increase each year x 5. Over the 
5 years of the rate increase this alternative has brought the District approximately $5,971,987 in revenue.          
 
Declining AT&T Lease  = $331,000 less in revenue per 6-10-2020 
Intake Emergency          = $267,523 in emergency expenses 
Rate Structure Chosen   = $572,583 less in revenue to the District over FY’S 2022-2026.  
Current Acct Receive     = $209,760 accounts receivable expecting 
Total                                 = $ 1,380,866 
 
These four items have played a considerable role in our current financial state. To date our financial 
reserves total $590,000.        

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

41



 

 
 

 

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Patrick McGowan  

Date: June 19th, 2023 

Subject: AMERICAN PAVEMENT SYSTEMS STOCKPILE AGREEMENT 

 

Description –  

American Pavement Systems has been contracted by Mariposa County to perform Merced Falls Road 

asphalt overlay project. I have been working with representative to ensure District assets (road isolation 

valves) are protected on this roadway upgrade. APS has requested the use of our District yard to stockpile 

ground up asphalt that will later be placed as resurfacing upgrade. The use would be approximately 5 

working days, and our property would be left as found. With Board approval, I will then begin negotiating 

any potential benefits the District may receive from this short term partnership.  

 
  

Lake Don Pedro Community Services District

STAFF REPORT 

42



 

 
 

American Pavement Systems, Inc. 
1012 11th Street, Suite 1000 

Modesto, CA 95354 
209‐522‐2277 

 

Date: ______________________ 

 

Attn: _______________________ 

Phone: _____________________ 

Email: ______________________ 

 

RE: Equipment Staging / Material Storage Agreement 

 

_____________________________(OWNER/PROPERTY MANAGER) agrees to allow American 

Pavement Systems, Inc. (APS) access to 

_____________________________________________(ADDRESS & PARCEL #) for an equipment 

staging and material storage area. This agreement is shall be in place for the duration of 

_________________________ (NUMBER OF DAYS / WEEKS, STARTING ON…..DATE). 

American Pavement Systems, Inc. agrees to compensate the owner/property manager 

__________________________ for the use of this site.  

All equipment and materials that are stored on the above referenced location will be separate 

from the owner’s daily operations. No hazardous materials will be brought on site and no 

contamination of any sort will be left behind. 

Dust control measures will be strictly monitored at all times. APS will clean and restore the 

location to original condition with owner approval upon move out. 

APS will provide all necessary certificates of insurance on owner’s request. A Hold Harmless 

Agreement will exist between owner and APS. The owner and APS agree not to be held 

responsible for any damages to property or persons except in an act of negligence. 

 

Owner or Owners Representative_____________________________ 

American Pavement Systems, Inc. _______________________________________ 

 

43



 

LAKE DON PEDRO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION 2023-xxx 

Resolution to update Signature Cards 
on All District Accounts 

 
WHEREAS, the District has had a change in Directors, Staff, and Bank Account which requires an update to 
all banking accounts, as well as open a new business account at PNC / Pinacle Bank, to reflect the current Board 
of Directors and Staff, 

And 
	

WHEREAS, the PNC / Pinacle Business Money Market Bank requires the log in password, the Local 
Agency Investment Account requires the pin number and the PNC / Pinacle Business Checking account is 
set up to require one (1) signature for the Bank to withdraw funds, however, the District will internally 
require two (2) signatures – one a Director and one a Staff Member, 

 
NOW THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors update the PNC / Pinacle Bank 
accounts, and the Local Agency Investment Fund account to include current Directors and approved staff on 
the signature cards. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, on this 19th day of June, 2023 the Board of Directors for the Lake Don Pedro 
Community Services District have agreed to update the signature cards for the financial institutions as 
follows: 

Personnel Authorized to 
Transfer Funds and Direct Deposits 

Authorized Signers PNC / Pinacle Money Market Account          
PNC /Pinacle  Business Checking Account LAIF Account 

 

Director Ross   Director Ross 
Director Johnson   Director Johnson 
Director Hankemeier . Director Hankemeier 
Director Warren   Director Warren 
Director Smith   Director Smith 
GM Patrick McGowan   Patrick McGowan, GM 
Syndie Marchesiello   Syndie Marchesiello, Office Manager 

 

WHEREFORE, this resolution was passed and adopted this 19th day of June 2023 at the Regular Meeting 
by the Board of Directors by the following vote: 

 
AYES:       

NAYS:  

ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:   
 
 
 
 

 

44



 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________                                              ____________________________________________ 
---------------------------------------------       ----------------------------------------------------------- 
_ 

Syndie Marchesiello, Board Secretary                                           President - Board of Directors – Director Hankemeier 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY 

 

I, Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary of the Lake Don Pedro Community Services District, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly updated on the 19th day of June, 2023 at the 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 

 
 

Syndie Marchesiello, Secretary

45




